Response to Questions and Comments to Draft Solicitation

DRFP5-53170/GAQ


1.  We propose to supply a proposal compliance matrix to facilitate the government evaluation of the proposal. If we submit this as an appendix to the proposal will it be excluded from the page count limitations specified in L.6 (c)?

Response to Question/Comment 1:

Please prepare and submit a Proposal Compliance Matrix as Appendix K as stated in L.6.  Further stated in L.6, the page numbers of appendices are unlimited.

2.  The second sentence of subsection B.5 specifies the Government's right to authorize a separately priced option within 30 days. Does this 30-day option validity period begin with the Contract authority to proceed, contract effective date, or other specified date? Subsection B.6 then includes bolded notation instructing the offeror to identify a date no later than PDR for authorizing Option CLINs 011 and 013. Subsection B.6 also identifies CLIN 012 as being exercisable at contract award. Is this in lieu of the afore noted 30-period in subsection B.5?  Is B.5 applicable only to CLIN 012? Please clarify.

Response to Question/Comment 2:
Clause B.5 is the Federal Acquisition Regulation authority to exercise an option.

The 30-day validity period commences upon Government’s notification to the Contractor of their intent to exercise an option.  (Please note that Clause B.6 has been changed -  reference to PDR has been deleted).  The offeror shall specify the last date by which the option may be exercised to allow for a common parts buy (parts procured together, yet instruments delivered separately); the offeror shall price that option so that the Government may exercise the option during the timeframe specified by the offeror.    

3.  Under E-1 entitled “Acceptance – Single Location” what is expected of the contractor to support acceptance at NASA?

Response to Question/Comment 3:

The Government will accept the instrument FOB destination after successful completion of the bench acceptance test.  Please note that the SOW, Paragraph 2.4.6, has been modified to require the performance of a post-delivery bench acceptance test.

4.  Does GSFC intend to conduct an EVMS IPR per NFS 1852.242-75 at ATP plus 180 days as specified in Clause I.1?

Response to Question/Comment 4:

Yes.

5.  Subparagraph (b) of G.4 states that award Fee (AF) evaluations will be performed IAW the performance evaluation plan to this contract.  The following questions/comments/recommendations are provided:
(1) It is not evident how, who or when this plan is generated. If to be generated by Offeror, then Section L should be amended with appropriate instructions;
(2) If to be generated by the Government, will it be included in the final RFP, or earlier so prospective offerors might have the opportunity to review and comment? If not, when will this plan be provided to the Offerors/successful contractor?;
(3) Recommend accommodation for this plan be made in Section J.1 as an Attachment to the model contract.

Response to Question/Comment 5:

The PEP is prepared by the Government and will be provided after contract award.

6.  Clause G.8 includes an instructional note that recognizes that the Government may, at a later date, identify certain GFP under this provision and update this clause upon such identification. It assumed that any such subsequent identification by the Government would be via contract change and would not require the contractor to provide consideration.  Is this assumption correct?

Response to Question/Comment 6:

Any subsequent identification by the Government of additional property to be provided to the contractor in performance of this contract will be added via a contract modification.  At this time it is impossible to determine if consideration by either party would be possible.

7.  Reference L.9 and L.12, At the orbital altitude of 407 km atomic oxygen causes severe erosion of standard thermal blankets. On the TMI program NASA Goddard developed a special material for blankets that was resistant to erosion, and provided that material to the instrument vendor. Will GSFC again provide this material to the contractor for us to use?

Response to Question/Comment 7:

Yes, Goddard will provide the blanketing material; Clause G8 has been modified accordingly.

8.  Clause H.3 provides for Government release to third parties, under non-disclosure agreement, of Contractor's confidential business information. For such a release: (1) will the Contractor be notified beforehand what information, and to whom, such information will be released; and (2) is a copy of such non-disclosure agreement available for review by the Contractor?

Response to Question/Comment 8:

No to both questions.  However, NASA currently has issued draft rules to the Federal Register regarding changed regulation in the handling of contractor confidential business information.  

9.  Under Clause H,.5, if the Offeror has a Comprehensive Subcontracting Plan, as a participant in the DoD Test Program authorized under Sec 834 of P.L. 101-189, which establishes a S/SDB/SDWOB subcontracting plan and goals on an enterprise-wide basis vs. individual contract. Is this sufficient for this special contract requirement? It is assumed that such plan would be made a part of the contract, and that contract-unique reporting would be accomplished  IAW this provision. Is this assumption correct?

Response to Question/Comment 9:

No.  An individual contract plan means a subcontracting plan that covers the entire contract period (including option periods), applies to a specific contract, and has goals that are based on the offeror's planned subcontracting in support of the specific contract, except that indirect costs incurred for common or joint purposes may be allocated on a prorated basis to the contract.

10.  Section H.10 talks about ITAR, and says contractor responsible for licenses, etc. Does this include the launch support we have to provide in Japan? Does this include shipping GSE to and from Japan?

Response to Question/Comment 10:

The contractor is responsible for obtaining the appropriate licenses or other approvals from the Department of State or the Department of Commerce when it exports hardware, technical data, or software, or provides technical assistance to a foreign destination or "foreign person", as defined in 22 CFR 120.16, and there are no applicable or available exemptions/exceptions to the ITAR/ EAR, respectively.  However, the exemption at 22 CFR 125.4(b)(3) of the ITAR provides that a contractor may export technical data without a license if the contract between the agency and the exporter provides for the export of the data.  The clause at 1852.225-70, Alternate I, (as in RFP5-53170/GAQ) provides contractual authority for the exemption, but the exemption is available only after the contracting officer, or designated representative, provides written authorization or direction enabling its use.   It is NASA policy that the exemption at 22 CFR 125.4(b)(3) may only be used when technical data (including software) is exchanged with a NASA foreign partner pursuant to the terms of an international agreement in furtherance of an international collaborative effort.  The offeror may assume for planning purposes that the GMI contracting officer will receive approval from the Center Export Administrator to use this exemption, and will grant the contractor the authority to use this exemption. 

11.  As much of the proposal will consist of ITAR-controlled data, should the proposal carry appropriate labeling on the cover pages and on each sheet with such data?

Response to Question/Comment 11:

No.

12.  Clause I.1 incorporates the as-appropriate FAR Clause 52.243-6, Change Order Accounting. Since GMI is of a developmental nature, changes are usually of such a programmatic impact and separate accounting is administratively burdensome if not impossible, as such changes frequently impact all elements of the WBS. The implementing language of FAR 43.205(f) allows the incorporation of this clause to be at the discretion of the PCO. Recommend deletion of the clause.

Response to Question/Comment 12:

The clause will remain within the solicitation.

13.  Section J, Clause J.1 indicates that Appendix H of the Vol I, Mission Suitability Proposal will be incorporated into any resultant contract award as Attachment H to the contract. Please explain why this proposal documentation would be made part of the contract.

Response to Question/Comment 13:

Section J, Attachment H has been rewritten in the final RFP to remove the requirement for position descriptions for a Project Manager and a Lead Systems Engineer.  Section L, Clause L. 8
MISSION SUITABILITY  PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS, Subfactor C has also been rewritten in the final RFP to remove the requirement for position descriptions from Management Approach.

14.  Subparagraph (a) of L.6 indicates there are no page limits on Vol 3, Business Proposal, which contains the Past Performance information. To facilitate the Government's efficient evaluation and provide insight as to the extent of documentation desired by the Government in its past performance evaluation, suggest page limits be assigned to the Past Performance section of this volume.

Response to Question/Comment 14:

Comment noted; no change to solicitation.

15.  The Appendix in L.6 requires submission of an Integrated Master Schedule, per CDRL 4.  However, the DID for CDRL 4 is unclear as to how much of the items listed are required during the proposal submission vs. subsequent submissions after contract award. Please clarify the proposal submission requirements

Response to Question/Comment 15:

DID for CDRL 4 has been modified to address content requested for proposal submission.

16.  Section L.6, may proposal tables and figures be set in 8 pt type, as they have been in many previous page-limited proposals to Government agencies?

Response to Question/Comment 16:

The solicitation has been modified to state:  “A page is defined as one side of a sheet, 8-1/2" x 11", with at least one inch margins on all sides, using not smaller than 12 point type for standard text.  Non-standard text, including graphics, charts, tables, and callouts, shall use no smaller than 8 point type.  Foldouts count as an equivalent number of 8-1/2" x 11" pages.  The metric standard format most closely approximating the described standard 8-1/2" x 11" size may also be used.”

17.  Page 71, L.6 ( b): Can figures and tables use 10 or 11 point types?

Response to Question/Comment 17:

See response to Item 16.

18.  Should the Safety & Health Plan referenced in Mission Suitability Subfactor D be made an appendix to Volume 1 and simply referred to in the Volume 1 narrative, or is a separate narrative expected in Volume 1?

Response to Question/Comment 18:

The RFP has been modified to require a copy of your company’s Health and Safety Plan; please provide this Plan as Appendix L in your proposal, and make reference to it in the discussions presented in Mission Suitability, Subfactor D.

19.  Section L7 says of Standard Form 33 "This portion of the proposal may be included under the same cover (Volume 3) as the Business Proposal." Section L12 however calls for the SF33 and Section K to be bound separately, with a different number of copies (4) from the number of copies for the Business Proposal (6). Please clarify.

Response to Question/Comment 19:

The solicitation has been modified to state that six copies of the business proposals shall have the SF33 and Section K bound to them.

20.   L.8, Subfactor C calls out "Position Qualifications," but this is also a 4 page long Appendix. In the Mission Suitability section are we to simply refer the evaluator to Appendix H?

Response to Question/Comment 20:

This section has been rewritten.  Please refer to the referenced section.

21.  In L.8, Subfactor C, with respect to Position Qualifications, is GSFC asking for the generic qualifications of the position, or the qualifications of the particular person who will take this position, i.e. the personal resumes of the persons who will take these positions?

Response to Question/Comment 21:

This section has been rewritten.  Please refer to the referenced section.

22.  Under L.8, Subfactor C, page 78, the instruction, "Managing Expenditure" under "Note:", states the funding profile should not include the high frequency channel option (CLIN 012) funds requirements. Notwithstanding it is assumed that the Government desires insight into the funding profile for such optional effort. Recommend the instruction be amended to add the requirement for a separate funding profile (and possibly a total line of basic and options) to facilitate the Government's planning for possible option authorization in a constrained fiscal environment. Additional clarifying instruction could also be added to Section L, subparagraph 2(e) which describes the format for the funding projections.

Response to Question/Comment 22:

The RFP has been amended to request funding profiles for the basic program and for each option.

23.  When we submit our revised MAR, does GSFC prefer a red-lined version of the GSFC MAR or a "clean" version?

Response to Question/Comment 23:

We do not want a red-lined MAR.  We would like the offeror to implement the requirements specified in the GMI MAR.   The offeror shall provide a Plan that describes their approach for implementing the mission assurance requirements specified in the GMI MAR, document number 422-10-05-002.  This may be accomplished by using an existing mission assurance program if that program satisfies the requirements specified in the GMI MAR.  Where differences exist between the requirements in the GMI MAR and the contractor’s existing mission assurance program, those differences shall be identified.

24.  Page 2-2 of the Mission Assurance Requirements., Attachment C, 2.2.2 Control of Monitoring and Measuring Devices:  We request that either the ANSI/ISO 17025 requirement or ISO9001:2000 and AS9100 be allowed. 

Response to Question/Comment 24:

As stated in the GMI MAR, Paragraph 2.1 “A Quality Management System (QMS) that is compliant with the minimum requirements of ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q9001-2000 (or equivalent) shall be planned…”.  If The use of ISO9001:2000 and AS9100 standards are equivalent, please request approval for their use following contract award. 

25.  Page 10-2, Attachment C, 10.4.2 Flight Workmanship:  Is substitution of material per IPC 4101, solder mask per IPC-SM-840, Class H, testing per IPC-ET-652 and IPC-D-275 and MIL-PRF-55110, Type 3 acceptable in lieu of the PWB standards called out in the second paragraph?  These proposed standards have been successfully used on previous Goddard programs.

Response to Question/Comment 25:

As stated in the GMI MAR at the end of Paragraph 10.2 “Alternate workmanship standards may be used when approved by the GSFC GPM Project.  The developer shall submit the alternate standard (identifying the differences between the alternate standard and the required standard) for GSFC GPM Project approval prior to use.”  Therefore, a request to use these standards following contract award would be appropriate, and would be given careful consideration.  

26.  Subparagraph (c) of L.9 provides instruction as to the requirements for the proposal WBS. Does the Government require the WBS to be able to segregate by CLIN, or may CLINs be co-mingled within the WBS as long as a separate Cost and Fee are provided for the CLINs noted in subparagraph (d)?

Response to Question/Comment 26:

The WBS should be end-item orientated.  That is there should be a separate WBS for each instrument under the overall project WBS.  Thus one would expect to see:

1.0 GMI Instrument Project

1.1 Project Management

1.2 SM&A

1.3 Systems Engineering

1.4 Special Studies

1.5 Etc.

2.0 Instrument Unit 1

2.1 Mechanical subsystem

2.2 Power subsystem

2.3 Etc.

2.N
Instrument Integration and Test

3.0 Instrument Unit 2

3.1 etc.

Cost and fee should be shown at the bottom line for each instrument with a total for the whole contract.  
27.  Are we to assume that Section L.9, paragraph 2 (Cost Proposal Format) c. (4) (Cost Reasonableness Rationale), does NOT require rationale to be provided at WBS level 3?
Response to Question/Comment 27:

Yes, the rationale need not be provided at WBS level 3.  The offeror is to provide a basis of estimate for cost elements and the methodology used to apply that BOE (see paragraph L.9.2.c).
28.  Subparagraph (d) of L.9 , specifies separate cost and fee for CLIN 001. It is assumed this is to include the non-recurring development costs.  Is this assumption correct?

Response to Question/Comment 28:

The offeror should include all nonrecurring and recurring costs associated with the build of each instrument including integration and test support through launch, plus anomaly resolution support as specified in the SOW.  CLIN 01 (the first instrument) should include WBS 1.0 and 2.0, CLIN 11 (the second instrument) should include WBS 3.0.  The High Frequency Channels (CLIN 12 & CLIN 13) should include the delta costs in WBS 1.0, 2.0 and 3.0 associated with those options. 

29.  Subparagraph (d) of L.9, specifies separate cost and fee for CLIN 012. It is assumed this is to include the non-recurring development costs.  Is this assumption correct?

Response to Question/Comment 29:

The costs for the high frequency channels for the first instrument should include all nonrecurring and recurring costs peculiar to those channels. 

30.  Paragraph (d) of L.10 instructs to provide separate pricing for CLINs 001, 011, 012, 013. What about the remaining CLINs?  Are they to be Not Separately Priced (NSP) and included in CLIN 001 (or other)?  Specifically, are CLINs 002 and 003 to be included in CLIN001 or should they be separately priced?  Please clarify

Response to Question/Comment 30:

It is believed your question should have referenced Clause L.9 in lieu of L.10.  The CLINs have been updated; please refer to the appropriate section in the Final RFP.

31.  Subparagraph (d) of L.9 , suggest the last sentence be reworded for clarity, as follows:  "The offeror shall indicate the latest date for each of the instrument #2 (CLIN 011) and/or CLINs (012/013) options may be exercised to allow for a common parts buy (parts procured together, yet instruments delivered separately) with GMI Instrument #1."

Response to Question/Comment 31:

Final RFP has been rewritten for clarity.

32.  L.9 subparagraph 2(C)(5) States direct and indirect rates by Government Fiscal Year (GFY).  If the Offeror utilizes annual rates by calendar year, would the Government like this exhibit to reflect a weighted average for the GFY on the basis of months or weighted by the pricing loads by GFY?

Response to Question/Comment 32:

How the conversion is done is up to the offeror, but there is a requirement to describe/demonstrate how the conversion was done.

33.  Is the Schedule A - Rate Schedule table in L.9, subparagraph 2(C)(5) to be by the Offeror's standard FPRA/FPRP fiscal year, or by GFY (which would require a compositing instruction)?

Response to Question/Comment 33:

The rates are to be by GFY per the instructions.  If the offeror has a FPRA/FPRP depicting fiscal year or government fiscal year, either will be accepted as evidence in submission of their cost proposal.

34.  For L.9, subparagraph 2(g), since the final design is pending non-recurring development efforts under CLIN 001, completing "Schedule C - Major Material Items" it is assumed that this schedule will be an estimated or representative bill of material (over $25K) with estimated values based on historical costs for same or like-type material.  Is this assumption correct?

Response to Question/Comment 34:

This should be the offeror’s best estimate of the material needed to build the instrument.

35.  L.9, paragraph 3 includes reference to the "CFI". Does this term mean this RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 35:

Reference to CFI has been deleted.

36.  Section L9 states "When the proposal is submitted, also submit one copy including attachments, to: (1) the Administrative Contracting Officer, and (2) the Contract Auditor. Include in your cost proposal (volume 2), name, address, point of contact, and phone number of the Administrative Contracting Officer and Contract Auditor within your proposal."  Are we to assume that these copies are in addition to the copies listed in Section L12?

Response to Question/Comment 36:

Yes.  The solicitation has been modified to clearly so indicate.
37.  Under L.12, the Proposal Copies and Volume Assembly, the matrix does not specifically state how many copies of the Appendices to deliver with the proposal.  Are 12 copies required of each of the Appendices as in Volume 1?
Response to Question/Comment 37:

Yes.  The number of appendices should match the number of volumes of proposals being submitted (i.e. 12 Mission Suitability Volumes, 12 copies of all appendices, etc.)

38.  May the electronic versions of the proposal outlined in L.12 consist uniquely of pdf files? (Pdf files permit word searches of their text and tables and provide clearer onscreen graphics than do Word files.)

Response to Question/Comment 38:

Cost data must be in Microsoft Excel 97 or later format, and at least one copy of other proposal material must be in MS Word.  The second soft copy of the proposal may be in pdf if the offeror so desires.

39.  The Section L & M on Subfactor C, Management Approach, are not clear on how the material for the Mission Suitability volume write-up differs from what is requested in Appendix A, Project Plan, as described in the CDRL 1 DID. Is it acceptable in the Management Approach narrative to reference the content of Appendix A?

Response to Question/Comment 39:

Appendix A may be referenced in Management Approach.

40.  Under the adjustment for Cost Realism of M.3, it is assumed that the variance will be computed as the difference between the Offeror's proposed cost and the Government's independent cost assessment of that Offeror's approach.  Is this correct?

Response to Question/Comment 40:

Cost realism will be based on a number of factors such as the difference between our estimate of the job and the contractors, errors and omissions in the offeror’s proposal, and assessment of the offeror’s proposal based on past performance for similar work, and other items.  Adjustment for Cost Realism under M.3 is the difference between the offeror’s proposed cost and the Government independent technical assessment of that offeror’s approach.  The evaluation shall include a cost realism analysis to determine what the Government should realistically expect to pay for the proposed effort, considering the offeror's understanding of the work, and the offeror's ability to perform the contract. 

41.  Under Subfactor A of M.3 , the listed criteria includes "Post Delivery Support", however, there is no commensurate element in the Attachment A SOW, other than some summary language in paragraph 1.2.  Is this area of Contractor responsibility aligned with the CLIN 003 title of "Anomaly Resolution Support"? There is no commensurate work scope or paragraph in the SOW for Anomaly Resolution Support.  Does the Government intend Post Delivery Support and/or Anomaly Resolution Support to be acquired at a later date under the Changes clause?  Is it the intent of the Government to acquire such support on a Level-of-Effort (LOE) basis, or is the Offeror expected to make an independent assessment of the resources required to accomplish this support?  Please clarify and provide additional insight into the Government's expectations so that all offerors may be responsible to the Government's needs.

Response to Question/Comment 41:

CLIN 003 – Anomaly Resolution has been deleted.  This activity has been added to the SOW (Paragraph 2.6.2), and will not need to be later added under the Changes clause.  The offeror is expected to make an independent assessment of the resources  required to accomplish this support based upon past experience.  To assist you in making this assessment the Government has provided Attachment 1, GPM I&T Flow, to the Statement of Work; this attachment provides the expected duration of the various I&T tasks planned during spacecraft integration and test.

42.  Attachment C, MAR calls out the DID numbers. There is no cross-reference to the CDRL numbers. Can CDRL numbers be added?

Response to Question/Comment 42:

The following has been added to Attachment D, Introduction:

“The number associated with a particular DID (such as identified in the MAR) corresponds in Table 3-1 with the same number used for a CDRL.”

43.  C.1 Identifies the contract scope of work as being specified in accordance with several contract attachments that are also listed in Section J.1. Further, within the GMI contract SOW (Doc 422-30-00-002), paragraph 2.01 identifies and orders precedence for Attachments A, B and C. Why is Attachment C, the GMI Mission Assurance Document (MAR) not included in the listing of this Section C.1?  Please clarify.

Response to Question/Comment 43:

The MAR is a quality assurance tool rather than a technical specification.

44.  We recommend moving Attachment C, MAR to the SOW where it would be more visible to program management.

Response to Question/Comment 44:

The SOW currently contains the following statement; we do not feel that there is a need to change the SOW:   “2.01  The requirements to which GMI shall be designed and constructed are contained in the GMI Requirements Document 422-30-00-001, the Mission Assurance Requirements 422-10-05-002,…”

45.  Under the criteria of Subfactor C, Section L, page 78, "Managing Expenditure" the Government infers that GFY funding constraints exist through FY 2006. Will the Government identify and/or provide specific by-FY funding limits imposed on the GMI Program in the Final RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 45:

No.  The offeror should develop a program which brings the instrument to a PDR-level of maturity in approximately 12 months after contract award, and CDR approximately 24 months after contract award.  The tasks noted in the solicitation should be accomplished during the appropriate periods, but the offeror does have some latitude to move the dates for PDR and CDR, especially if such moves will assist in the development of a funding profile that minimizes early funding requirements.  The Government desires that costs be minimized during the front-end of the program, but it is the offeror’s responsibility to ensure the development of a program that satisfies the requirements of the solicitation, and to propose the funding profile necessary for the accomplishment of the proposed activities.

46.  Subfactor C instructions address Small Business Subcontracting Program, which specifically includes small disadvantaged businesses and identifies the requirement to submit the Subcontracting Plan. Subfactor E instructions again address small disadvantaged business subcontracting and establish a requirement for the type of documentation that is normally included in a Subcontracting Plan, such as outreach programs, etc. Our questions/comment are:
(1) Since under L.8, page 73 states that "Offerors shall organize their technical proposal in the same format as the following instructions", is the Government's intent to have this data in more than one place in the proposal? 
(2) Will this subject matter be evaluated in each of two separate subfactors? (3) Also, Subfactor C instructions direct that the Subcontracting Plan envisioned by FAR 19.7 "shall be submitted with your proposal". This appears to be a third duplication of same or similar content. Could the Government amend the instructions to allow this like-type data to be submitted in a single location of the proposal, or alternately provide some additional insight as to the specific material to be in each area to ensure ease of the Government's evaluation. In addition, if references are made, within Volume 1, to narrative content in the separately submitted subcontracting Plan, will the Government evaluator(s) include the Plan data in their evaluation of Subfactors C and/or E? 
(4) Is it the Government's intent to incorporate this Subcontract Plan into the resultant contract by reference, or actual incorporation as an attachment?

Response to Question/Comment 46:

The Small Business Subcontracting Program information requested in Mission Suitability Subfactor C is different than the information requested in Subfactor E Small Business Participation Program of Section L.1 and therefore should be separately addressed in your Mission Suitability proposal.  The Small Business Subcontracting Plan submitted for Subfactor C is not evaluated in Subfactor E instruction of Section M.  The Government intends to incorporate the actual approved subcontracting plan into any resultant contract.

47.  Att D, CDRL, Paragraph 1 Intro.  The third unnumbered paragraph lists four documents, the first of which is the GPM Configuration Management Plan. This document is not identified elsewhere in the RFP as a requirements document. Please clarify the Government's intent in listing this document, including whether or not this is a compliance or guidance document, and, if appropriate, listing this document under paragraph 2.01 of the SOW, Attachment A. Also, is a copy of this document available to offerors? Please identify how offerors can secure a copy, or confirm that it is available on the Government  GPM/GMI website

Response to Question/Comment 47:

Referenced document (CM Plan) has been removed; contractor to provide own plan.
48.  As stated in Section A, SOW, section 3.5.3. "The contractor shall support major GPM  reviews, such as the  Core Spacecraft PDR, Mission Confirmation Review, etc. The support shall principally be in the form of presenting at these reviews top-level design information concerning the GMI, including accommodation requirements, descriptions of instrument deployments, instrument-to-spacecraft interface requirements, etc. Please specify frequency and dates.

Response to Question/Comment 48:

Paragraph 3.4.2 has been added to the SOW; this paragraph identifies the reviews where contractor support will be required.  References to reviews in Paragraph 3.5.3 have been removed.  For planning purposes you may assume the reviews will occur on the following schedule:

Core Spacecraft PDR 
GFY2005

GPM MCR 


GFY2006
Core Spacecraft CDR 
GFY2007

PER



GFY2010

PSR



GFY2010

FRR



GFY2010.

49.  The Statement of Work, paragraph 3.5.3. states that  “The contractor shall support major GPM reviews, such as the Core Spacecraft PDR, Mission Confirmation Review, etc.  The support shall principally be in the form of presenting at these reviews top-level design information concerning the GMI, including accommodation requirements, descriptions of instrument deployments, instrument-to-spacecraft interface requirements, etc.   These reviews will be held at GSFC. ”  How many of these major reviews shall we plan for and over what period of time?

Response to Question/Comment 49:

See comment 47, above.

50.  Paragraph 3.9 of Attachment A, SOW, Section 2.7 states that no instrument storage is presently anticipated, however, the title of paragraph 2.7 includes the word "Storage".  In addition, Paragraph 3.9 identifies storage as being out of scope to the basic contract but defines long-term storage as >90 days, the triggering criteria for a delta PSR addressed in paragraph 3.8.4. Does this mean that Offerors should assume that up to 90 days should be in the baseline contract for pricing purposes?  Please clarify and provide definitive pricing instructions.  It is assumed that any long-term storage would be directed via the contract Changes clause, at the time the storage requirement is identified.  Is this a correct assumption?

Response to Question/Comment 50:

References to storage have been removed from the SOW.

51.  Attachment A, SOW, Section 2.3.7 enables special studies as directed by the COTR & within the specified maximum number of hours which provides for Special Studies not to exceed 15,000 hours over contract life.  It is assumed that these 15,000 hours should be bid under CLIN 001. Is this assumption correct? What about CLIN 003 Anomaly Resolution: should any of these hours be bid under this CLIN?.  Please provide clarification as to which CLIN these hours are to be bid, and how CLIN 003 will operate.

Response to Question/Comment 51:

Special Study hours are now provided as part of CLIN 1 (WBS element 1.4 in Question 26, above).  Please refer to Question 41 regarding CLIN 003/Anomaly Resolution.
52.  Att A, SOW 2.3.11, 2.3.12 establishes a minimum threshold (38 mos) and an objective (62 mos) on-orbit operational life for the instrument.  If the Offeror proposes operational life greater than this stated minimum, will a more favorable score be awarded to that offeror under the Government's best value evaluation? If so, recommend that specific language confirming as be added to the third sentence of the second unnumbered paragraph under Subfactor B of Section M. Specifically, suggest that sentence be reworded as follows:
"The design concept will be assessed to determine the extent to which the proposed design provides increased GPM Mission scientific research potential in comparisons to an instrument that meets minimum performance, including operational life in accordance with subsection 2.3 of the Statement of Work."

Response to Question/Comment 52:

No.

53.  Att A, SOW 2.6.2 The location of the integration and test and other support of any optional instrument is TBD. Will this TBD be identified in the final RFP?  If not, for pricing consistency between offerors, will the Government identify a nominal location, or alternately, will the Government allow Offerors to assume Tanegashima Space Center (TNSC), Japan as the location for the optional instrument?

Response to Question/Comment 53
The SOW now specifies for the optional instrument spacecraft integration to take place at GSFC and launch at Vandenburg. 

54.  Att A, SOW 3.3.3 cites the location and frequency of TIMs for the optional instrument are identified as TBD. Does the Government expect to identify this location in the final RFP, or will they identify a nominal location for consistency of pricing among the offerors?

Response to Question/Comment 54:

The SOW has been updated to reflect for planning purposes the number and location of TIMs that will be held for the Optional Instrument.  

55.  Att A, 3.3.5 SOW Identifies the requirement for the contractor to support major GPM reviews. Will the Government identify the number and nominal scheduling of such reviews, or in the alternate, will the Government provide a nominal set of reviews and related schedules to allow consistency in pricing among the offerors?

Response to Question/Comment 55:

The SOW has been reworded.  Also see Question 47, above.
56.  Att B, Rqmts3.1.7.3.4 Current requirement reads: "The contractor shall provide a detailed description of the 90 percent energy contour of the projected antenna beam for each GMI channel, weighted over the channel pass-band, at the center of scan, and referenced by two orthogonal directions corresponding to the along-scan and cross-scan directions."

Response to Question/Comment 56:

See revisions to Requirements Document in Final RFP.

57.  Att B, Rqmts 3.1.7.3.4   the requirement as worded is not well defined.  Any number of contours can be drawn to enclose 90% of the total energy within the antenna.  We interpret this to mean the iso-gain contour of the beam that contains 90% co-pol energy.  Is this correct?

Response to Question/Comment 57:

See revisions to Requirements Document in Final RFP.

58.  Att B, Rqmts 3.1.7.3.4. "…weighted over the channel passband…"  We interpret this to mean the antenna patterns at several frequencies across a channel passband will be averaged, but weighted by the frequency response of the receiver. However, the number of frequencies to be so averaged and the span of the frequencies (over central 75%, or 3 dB bandwidth, or 40 dB bandwidth) is undefined.  Please specify.

Response to Question/Comment 58:

See revisions to Requirements Document in Final RFP.

59.  Attachment B Reqmts. 3.1.7.3.43.  We interpret the "…detailed description of the … contour…" to be on a plane perpendicular to the beam direction, not as mapped on the ground.

Response to Question/Comment 59:

See revisions to Requirements Document in Final RFP.

60.  Under paragraph 2.1.14, 2.6.2., and Attachment 1, PROJECT MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION AND TEST & GPM I&T Flow, the GMI Delivery date shown on the figure found on page 20 and referenced in Paragraph 2.6.2, is specified as 11/07.  This date is inconsistent with 48 months ACA for first unit delivery specified earlier in Paragraph 2.1.14.  Please clarify.

Response to Question/Comment 60:

The Integration and Test Flow has been revised to reflect the duration of each activity.  

61.  The requirement for 0.12 degree absolute pointing in paragraph 3.1.7.5.5 is stated as “error” (i.e. control).  It is also unclear how this relates to the 0.1 degree off-nadir angle requirement of 3.1.7.5.4.3, and the 0.2 degree off-nadir angle requirement of 3.1.7.5.4.1.  We had assumed that off-nadir angles in these paragraphs constitute an overall accuracy budget in the cross-scan direction.  What is the meaning of the 0.12 degree requirement and how does it relate to the off-nadir requirements.

Response to Question/Comment 61:


The term 'error' is used to represent the deviation of the actual pointing from the reported pointing direction.

Requirement 3.1.7.5.4.3 'Off-Nadir Angle Other Channels' refers to the setting and reporting by the contractor of the off-nadir angle.  The 0.10 degrees specified within this requirement is not an error source, it is the allowable range within which the contractor may set and report the off-nadir angle of the channels with respect to the reference channel.

Similarly, Requirement 3.1.7.5.4.1 'Off-Nadir Angle Reference Channel' refers to a range of angles within which the contractor shall set and report the off-nadir angle of the reference channel.  Once the off-nadir angle is set, deviations from this reported value is error.

Requirement Action:

No change to Requirement 3.1.7.5.5 'Absolute Beam Pointing Error'

62.  The verification list under 3.2.4.1. includes two items that we believe are the same:  Antenna feedhorn spillover and the effect of incident radiation outside of the feedhorn antenna’s 90 percent energy contour (sidelobe effects).  Is this interpretation correct? 

Response to Question/Comment 62:

See revisions to Requirements Document in Final RFP.

63.  The applicable frequencies in paragraph 4.1.6.4. for RS03 should exclude the GMI 40 dB passbands per 3.1.2.1 Table 3-1 and paragraph 3.1.3.2.1. 

Response to Question/Comment 63:

See revisions to Requirements Document in Final RFP.

64.  The DID under CDRL 12 states that an initial Software Development and Management Plan is to be submitted with the proposal.  Since the Plan is not listed in Section L as an Appendix, nor is it mentioned in Section M, we are unsure of where to include it and how it will be scored.
Response to Question/Comment 64:

The solicitation has been changed to require submittal of CDRL 12, Software Development and Management Plan, 60 days prior to PDR.

65.  Page 11, Clause E.1: Request Acceptance of hardware (DD250) at Contractor’s facility
Response to Question/Comment:

No.  See response to Item 3.

66.  Page 11, Clause E.2: Request clarification on whether a DD250 is or is not required (title of this clause appears to contradict text as well as Clause E.6).

Response to Question/Comment 66:

See Final Solicitation for disposition.

67.  Page 16, Clause F.2: Request FAR 52.247-34 (F.O.B. Destination) be replaced with FAR 52.247-29 (F.O.B. Origin).   The Contractor assumes all shipping and transportation costs associated with delivery of hardware to the Spacecraft Contractor’s facility will be considered allowable direct costs to the contract.  If requested change cannot be accommodated, request Contractor be allowed to inspect hardware at Spacecraft Contractor’s facility upon arrival.
Response to Question/Comment 67:

No.  See response to Item 3.

68.  Page 20, G.4 Award Fee For End Item Contracts (b): Would the Government consider increasing the frequency of Contractor evaluations for award fee from 6 months to 3 months? More frequent evaluations provide enhanced team communications, fewer surprises for the Government and allow the Contractor to implement corrective action,  if necessary, before long term problems manifest. This evaluation could be accomplished as part of quarterly program reviews. The contractor assumes a mutually agreeable award fee plan/provisions will be negotiated at a later date.
Response to Question/Comment 68:

No.

69.  Page 70, L.6., Title of Volume 1. Mission Suitability:  This page limitation discussion suggests that Volume 1 is best titled Mission Suitability. Other references (pg 73) in the DRFP refer to the first volume as the “Technical Proposal” rather than “Mission Suitability” volume.  Please be specific for the title of Volume 1.

Response to Question/Comment 69:

Volume 1 is correctly titled ”Mission Suitability”.

70.  Page 71, L.6 ( a ) Proposal Page Limitations, Appendices of Volume 1: (a)Item D should have a (CDRL 5) tag, (b)Item I: Does the Government want the System Performance Verification Plan or just the matrix called out in CDRL 27?(c)Should CDRL 12, Software Development & Management Plan be added to this list as it is called out for delivery at proposal in the CDRL document table? (d)Based upon the criticality of instrument calibration, we recommend adding CDRL 14, Calibration Plan & Models to the appendices to be delivered with the proposal.

Response to Question/Comment 70:

(a) Agree, Item D is now identified as CDRL 5.

(b) The Government wants a Draft System Performance Verification Plan, to include a top-level Performance Verification Matrix, delivered with the proposal.  See updated CDRL 27.  
(c) Delivery of the Software Development & Management Plan, CDRL 12, is required 60 days prior to PDR.

(d)  A Draft Calibration Plan & Models, CDRL 14, is requested to be delivered with the proposal.

71.  Page 7, Attachment D, Table 3-1, CDRL 14:  Does the Government want this CDRL delivered with the proposal?

Response to Question/Comment 70:

Yes.  Also see Question 70.

72.  Page 71, L.6 ( c ): Can we assume from this statement that the Health and Safety Plan (Subfactor D) and the SDB Participation (Subfactor E) are not page limited?

Response to Question/Comment 72:

See response to Items 18.

73.  Page 77, Subfactor C, Position Qualifications:  Write-up describes a generic job description. Page 95, Section M, Subfactor C, Position Qualifications states “evaluated to determine that experienced individuals will occupy the respective positions.”  Does the Government want the Contractor to identify individuals and provide candidate resumes to fill these positions?

Response to Question/Comment 73:

See response to Items 20 and 21.

74.   Page 85, L.9 Para. 2 (c)(5) (b):  Please provide clarification of requirements under this sub-paragraph.  The Contractor believes that submittal of our FRPA and DCMA/ACO contact information adequately meets the requirements to provide data supporting our indirect rates.  Confirmation of this assumption is requested.

Response to Question/Comment 74:

The Government is asking offerors to submit rate details if submitting rate information other than FPRA data.  Also see response to Item 33.

75.  Page 94, L.12 Proposal Copies and Volume Assembly: Can the two electronic/software versions of the proposal and appendices be submitted as Adobe (.pdf) files? Adobe supports keyword searches and has proven to be more stable than (MS Office).

Response to Question/Comment 75:

See Question 38.

76.  Page 20, draft statement of work, Attachment 1. GPM I&T Flow: Individual blocks within diagram start and stop dates need to be updated based on delivery of the 1st GMI on or about 10/08.

Response to Question/Comment 76:

I & T Flow has been updated with durations for each activity.  Also see Item 59.
77.  In Attachment B, Requirements, 3.1.7.1.  Is mission life the same as Design/Operational Life?

Response to Question/Comment 77:

The mission life in paragraph 3.1.7.1 is the same as the design/operational life.  The term “mission life”  has been replaced in the Requirements Document contained in the Final RFP.

78.  Page 3-6, Attachment B, 3.1.3.2.2 Out-of-Band Signals Verification: Please provide clarification for receiver demonstration with DPR and Communications system, e.g. is it anticipated that this testing will be at spacecraft level?

Response to Question/Comment 78:

Yes.  See revised GMI Requirements Document.

79.  Page 3-6, Attachment B, 3.1.3.3 Channel-to-Channel Isolation:  Suggest adding “…to 40 dB at any frequency within their respective passbands.”

Response to Question/Comment 79:

Agree.  See revised GMI Requirements Document.

80.  Page 3-9, Attachment B, 3.1.5.5 Polarization Requirements:  Please provide clarification on spherical vs oblate earth and spacecraft attitude errors to be assumed

Response to Question/Comment 80:

The vendor may assume a spherical earth and no spacecraft attitude errors when addressing the Vertical Polarization Alignment and Horizontal Polarization Alignment requirements.  See revised GMI Requirements Document.

81.  Page 4-4, Attachment B, 4.1.2.3 GMI Housekeeping Data Record Content: Is the Housekeeping Data Telemetry of sections 4.1.3.5-4.1.3.7 the same as or different from the Housekeeping Data Records of this section?

Response to Question/Comment 81:

Yes.  The term “telemetry” has been removed from science and housekeeping data records to alleviate confusion.

82.  Page 4-5, Attachment B, 4.1.3.8 Spacecraft-Monitored Telemetry:  Does the Government intend to remove the TBR in the Final RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 82:

Yes.  See revised GMI Requirements Document. 

83.  Page 4.5, Attachment B, 4.1.4.1 Time Tagging of Data Records:  Should the GDR mentioned here be a GSDR, since a GDR is defined to consist of a GSDR and a GHDR in section 4.1.2.1?

Response to Question/Comment 83:

Yes.  See revised GMI Requirements Document. 

84.  Page 4-9, Attachment B, 4.1.6.3 Conducted Emissions:  The GEVS limits are 35 dB more restrictive at the lower frequencies than previous NASA programs we have worked.  Is it anticipated that the GEVS limits will be relaxed to meet the more common MIL-STD-461C limits for payloads and cabin payloads equipment?

Response to Question/Comment 84:

GEVS is the current requirement.

85.  Page 4-9, Attachment B, 4.1.6.3 Conducted Emissions:  The bandwidth for 20 kHz to 2 MHz listed in the narrowband test limits table is 500 kHz.  This should be 500 Hz

Response to Question/Comment 85:

This was a mistake.  See revised GMI Requirements Document.

86.  Page 4-10, Attachment B, 4.1.6.4 Radiated Susceptibility: Does the Government intend to remove the TBR at 2287.5 MHz. Will the Government provide values for the two TBDs at 13.6 and 35.55 GHz in the Final RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 86:

The Radiated Susceptibility requirements specified in GEVS provide the best definition of requirements currently available.  The revised GMI Requirements Document has been updated with all currently known characteristics of the DPR.  The requirements, and the associated TBRs, at 13.6 GHz and 35.55 GHz have been removed.  

87.  The field strengths for 13.6 and 35.55 GHz are TBD in Attachment B, Rqmts. 4.1.6.4. Will this TBD be filled in by the final RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 87:

See Question 86 above.
88.  Page 4-10, Attachment B, 4.1.6.5 Radiated Emissions: The notch at 400-500 MHz may be challenging to meet and could potentially drive cost.  Is it possible that the Government could re-evaluate the need for a requirement this stringent prior to the Final RFP?  

Response to Question/Comment 88:

The notch is applicable only during the launch phase.  Please see revised Requirements Document.

89.  Page 4-17, Attachment B, Table 4-1 Notes: Flight Hardware notes c. and d. deleted. Should they be reinserted?

Response to Question/Comment 89:

Notes c and d refer to Spare Hardware and Reflight Hardware and were inadvertently deleted; they have been re-inserted into the Requirements Document.

90.  Page 4-19, Attachment B,  4.4.1  Instrument Magnetic Characteristics:  Will the Government provide the referenced figure (TBS) in the Final RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 90:

Reference to “figure (TBS)” was in error and has been deleted from Requirements Document.

91.  Page 4-27 and 4-28, Attachment B, 4.7.5.3 and 4.7.5.4 Sine Vibration.  Will the Government provide values for the two TBDs in both tables in the Final RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 91:

See updated Requirements Document; values have been specified for TBDs. 

92.  Page 4-29, Attachment B, 4.7.5.6 External Shock Environment:  Will the Government provide the referenced figure (TBS) in the Final RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 92:

Reference figure has been included in the revised Requirements Document.

93.  "The GMI shall be designed to withstand the shock spectrum of Figure [TBS]"as specified in Attachment B Rqmts 4.7.5.6.   May we assume the spacecraft will be designed to provide a shock spectrum consistent with the current instrument design?

Response to Question/Comment 93:

See Question 92, above.

94.  Page 4-31, Attachment B, 4.8.2.5 Combined Shipping and Storage Containers: Please substitute the “hermetically sealable” requirement with “environmentally sealed”.
Response to Question/Comment 94:

Agree with recommendation.  Refer to Requirements Document for changes to requirements to for the shipping and storage container.

95.  Page 8, Attachment D, Table 3-1, CDRL 27:  Delivery due date shows PDR only.  Does the Government want this CDRL delivered with the proposal?  

Response to Question/Comment 95:

Yes.  CDRL has been up-dated to reflect proposal delivery requirements.  Also see Question 70.
96.  May we assume the Ethernet referred to in L.8, Subfactor B is the 10 Mbps, twisted pair variety (10Base-T) in Attachment A, SOW? If not, please provide specifications on the Ethernet interface for the GPM spacecraft that we are to study.

Response to Question/Comment 96:

The Ethernet study (Para 2.3.0.1) has been deleted from the SOW.
97.  The constellation SC is referred to in section 1.3 of the RFP, for recommendations for tailoring and in 6 other technical requirements sections. It appears that this option continues to be a factor in the proposal evaluation. It is understood that some of the packaging constraints for the constellation spacecraft have been relaxed. Will more specific goals appear in the final RFP and if not will commonality and compliance with the constellation configuration, disclosed during the risk reduction study, be a value added feature in response to the RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 97:

Due to the uncertainty regarding the Constellation spacecraft and the Optional instrument, tailoring is not considered appropriate at this time.  Sections L and M do not address tailoring, and additional credit during the evaluation will not be provided.
98.  Cold sky calibration, relative to the core spacecraft configuration, is a process that will need to be adjusted and optimized. Will more specific core spacecraft configuration detail appear in the final RFP, Attachment A, SOW, Section 2.2.4.1? If not will a proposed path toward a technical solution, based on spacecraft geometry already disclosed since the risk reduction phase, be a value added feature in response to the RFP?

Response to Question/Comment 98:

Additional information regarding spacecraft geometry will not be provided.  The refinement of the instrument-spacecraft interfaces is an activity that will be pursued prior to PDR.  Additional/extra credit during proposal evaluation for the identification of “a path toward a technical solution” will not be provided.

99.  As specified in Attachment B, Rqmts., 4.3.2.3. “The spacecraft-to-instrument baseplate (instrument mounting surface) temperature ranges from -25 degrees C to +50 degrees C.  " Are these temperatures the operational or survival temperature ranges?

Response to Question/Comment 99:

This temperature range for the instrument mounting surface applies for all times.  Therefore, the instrument design shall accommodate this mounting surface temperature range during the GMI Operational Mode as well as during spacecraft survival mode.
100.  GMI Requirements Document, Paragraph 4.8.3.5.  Where can information be obtained on the ASIST Ground Support Software? 
Response to Question/Comment 100:

The requirement to use ASIST has been deleted from the Requirements Document.  The type of ground support software to be used during spacecraft I & T will be specified during the development of the instrument-to-spacecraft interface control document.
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